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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

MIDDLE DISTRICT OF TENNESSEE 

U.S.A. vs. Robert Frank Arnold 	 Docket No. 0650 3:16CR00117 - 1 

Petition for Action on Conditions of Pretrial Release 

COMES NOW Kimberly J. Haney 	 , PRETRIAL SERVICES OFFICER 
presenting an official report upon the conduct of defendant Robert Frank Arnold 
who was placed under pretrial release supervision by the Honorable John S. Bryant, U.S. Magistrate Judge 
sitting in the Court at  Nashville, Tennessee 	, on May 27, 2016 	, under the following 

conditions: Please reference the attached Order Setting Conditions of Release. 

Respectfully presenting petition for action of Court and for cause as follows: 

Please reference page two of this document. 

I declare under penalty of rjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Kimberly J. Hane 	 Nashville, TN 
	

September 21, 2016 

U.S. Pretrial Services O facer 	 Place: 
	

Date: 

Next Scheduled Court Event 	Trial 	 February 07, 2017 
Event 	 Date 

PETITIONING THE COURT 

❑ No Action 	 ® To issue an order setting a hearing on the petition 

❑ To Issue a Warrant 	 ❑ Other 

THE COURT ORDERS: 
❑ No Action 
❑ The Issuance of a Warrant. 

❑ Sealed Pending Warrant Execution 
(cc: U.S. Probation and U.S. Marshals only) 

❑ Other 

Considered and ordered this  2 ®Pj 	day 
of 	 , a  ' , and ordered filed 
and made a part of the records in the above 
case 	 t 

Alistair E. Newbern 
S. Magistrate Judge 

A Hearing on the Petition is set for 

Date Time 
September 27, 2016 at                    1:30 p.m.
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Honorable Alistair E. Newbern 
U.S. Magistrate Judge 
RE: Petition for Action on Robert F. Arnold 
3:16CR00117-1 
September 21, 2016 

On May 26, 2016, defendant, Robert F. Arnold, was charged with Conspiracy to Commit Wire 
Fraud, Honest Services Fraud, Bribery, Hobbs Act Extortion Under the Color of Official Right, and 
Obstruction of an Investigation; Wire Fraud; Honest Services Fraud; Bribery Concerning Federal 
Programs; Hobbs Act Extortion Under Color of Official Right; and Attempt to Tamper with a 
Witness by Corrupt Persuasion, and he was released by the Honorable John S. Bryant, U.S. 
Magistrate Judge, on his own personal recognizance and pretrial services supervision. He has since 
been supervised by the United States Probation and Pretrial Services Office in the Middle District 
of Tennessee. 

Special Conditions of Pretrial Release: 

Please reference the attached Order Setting Conditions of Release. 

Violation(s): 

(1) The defendant shall not violated any federal state or local law while on release in this case. On 
September 5, 2016, the defendant allegedly committed the offense of Domestic Assault in 
Murfreesboro, Rutherford County, Tennessee. 

According to the Tennessee Code Annotated (T.C.A.) state statute, a domestic assault is 
characterized as "A person commits domestic assault who commits an assault as defined in 39-13-
101 against a domestic abuse victim." T.C.A. 39-13-11l(b). A "domestic abuse victim" includes 
adults "who are current or former spouses." T.C.A. 39-13-111(a)(1). "A person commits assault 
who: (1) Intentionally, knowingly, or recklessly causes bodily injury to another; (2) Intentionally or 
knowingly causes another to reasonably fear imminent bodily injury; or (3) Intentionally or knowing 
causes physical contact with another and a reasonable person would regard the contact as extremely 
offensive or provocative." T.C.A. 39-13-101(a). 

On September 20, 2016, the defendant's wife, Megan Arnold, met with a Tennessee Bureau of 
Investigation (TBI) special agent. During the meeting, Mrs. Arnold reviewed a statement prepared 
by the TBI, based on her previous conversations with the agent, which indicated the defendant had 
physically abused her. Although Mrs. Arnold acknowledged that the statement was accurate, she 
declined to sign it. Reportedly, on September 5, 2016, the family visited a friend's residence for a 
social gathering, where the defendant consumed alcoholic beverages. Upon returning home, the 
defendant continued to consume alcohol and an Anibien sleeping pill. Mrs. Arnold related that she 
became intimate with the defendant as a way to make him go to bed because he gets angry easily 
when he has been drinking. Due to the defendant's intoxicated state, Mrs. Arnold stated that she 
discontinued her interaction with the defendant, and he went to their bedroom to be alone. Mrs. 
Arnold attempted to go into their bedroom, but the defendant attempted to push the door closed 
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Honorable Alistair E. Newbern 
U.S. Magistrate Judge 
RE: Petition for Action on Robert F. Arnold 
3 :16CR00117-1 
September 21, 2016 

while she attempted to push the door open. After a period of time, Mrs. Arnold reached through the 
door opening, twisted the defendant's nipple, and he released the door. Consequently, the defendant 
pushed Mrs. Arnold to the floor and punched her in her right arm near her shoulder. Mrs. Arnold 
kicked the defendant, and a struggle ensued. During the struggle, the defendant grabbed a belt and 
wrapped it around Mrs. Arnold in an attempt to drag her out of the room without leaving marks on 
her body. Mrs. Arnold slipped out of the belt, and the defendant pinned her on the bed with his 
body. Mrs. Arnold related the defendant said if he were to place all of his body weight on her that 
she would stop breathing. Eventually, the defendant got up and Mrs. Arnold went to another part 
of the house. 

In a recorded conversation between Mrs. Arnold and a third party, Mrs. Arnold stated that she 
wanted to make a statement to the police, but she is scared of the defendant. She advised the party 
on the telephone that the defendant shoved her down and punched her in the arm. She added that 
the defendant wrapped a belt around her in an effort to not physically touch her and leave marks on 
her body. Mrs. Arnold indicated the defendant also hit her on the leg with the belt. 

Probation Officer's Actions: 

On September 6, 2016, Supervisory U.S. Probation Officer (SUSPO) Vidette Putman spoke with 
Assistant U. S. Attorney (AUSA) Cecil VanDevender regarding information pertaining to an alleged 
incident involving the defendant and his wife over the holiday weekend. Allegedly the defendant 
took an Ambien sleeping pill and "roughed up" his wife. AUSA VanDevender advised that the 
defendant's wife called the Rutherford County Sheriff's Department. A deputy sheriff appeared on 
the scene, but a report was not filed. Later on the same day, SUSPO Putman spoke with the 
defendant regarding the alleged incident, and he stated that nothing happened. When asked a second 
time, he indicated that he and his wife "had an argument but nothing was physical." 

On September 7, 2016, additional information was provided by AUSA VanDevender from a third 
party who stated the defendant drank too much and took an Ainbien pill. The defendant had an 
argument with his wife and pushed her to the floor. Reportedly, Mrs. Arnold called a deputy sheriff 
and another person who came to their house. Mrs. Arnold told them that she was "sick of the way 
the defendant treated her." SUSPO Putman spoke with Mrs. Arnold on this date. Mrs. Arnold 
related that she and the defendant had an argument, but the defendant did not put his hands on her. 
She stated that they were arguing more and all of this attention is a ploy to get the defendant. Mrs. 
Arnold said the defendant had been drinking and became belligerent. She stated the defendant did 
not push her down. Mrs. Arnold has plans to file for divorce, and she noted that all of this is 
affecting their children who are ages 3 and 8. She indicated that she could not take off work to 
provide a written statement. SUSPO Putman advised that this officer would contact her to provide 
her with an email address to submit the statement. This officer sent Mrs. Arnold a text message and 
provided her with an email address to submit her written statement regarding the incident between 
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Honorable Alistair E. Newbern 
U.S. Magistrate Judge 
RE: Petition for Action on Robert F. Arnold 
3:16CR00117-1 
September 21, 2016 

she and the defendant. However, Mrs. Arnold did not respond to the text message, and she did not 
submit a written statement. 

Compliance With Release Conditions: 

Mr. Arnold has maintained gainful employment, as he remains the Sheriff of Rutherford County, 
reported as instructed, and there has not been an issue with drug use. 

On September 7, 2016, the defendant reported to the U.S. Probation and Pretrial Services Office for 
this officer's reporting day. While at the office, a staffing was conducted with SUSPO Putman, the 
defendant, and this officer to discuss the allegations of domestic assault against his wife. The 
defendant reported that he and his wife had an argument and also noted they were arguing all 
weekend. The defendant stated that the pending case against him has been stressful for the family, 
and they have discussed divorce. When asked to write a statement, the defendant wrote, "Nothing 
happened on September 3-5,2016." The defendant appeared somewhat upset about the allegations, 
and he stated he has faced similar allegations in the past. He said he was "over it." SUSPO Putman 
told him that he is not being treated any differently than anyone else on pretrial supervision, and that 
the U.S. Probation and Pretrial Services Office is obligated to investigate all allegations and will 
continue to do so when notified. 

Respectfully Petitioning the Court as Follows: 

The defendant has been accused of domestic assault against his wife, Megan Arnold. Due to the 
violent nature of this alleged offense and the defendant's access to firearms, it is respectfully 
recommended that the Court issue an order setting a hearing and the defendant's conditions of 
release be amended to include: (1) refrain from any use of alcohol; (2) participate in a program of 
inpatient or outpatient alcohol abuse therapy and counseling; (3) participate in anger management 
counseling; and (4) refrain from possessing a firearm at his residence or in his vehicle (s). 

Assistant U.S. Attorney Cecil VanDevender has been notified regarding this petition, and he 
disagrees with this officer's recommendation. The Government is asking the Court for a 
warrant. 
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Honorable Alistair E. Newbern 
U.S. Magistrate Judge 
RE: Petition for Action on Robert F. Arnold 
3 :16CR00117-1 
September 21, 2016 

Approved by: 

l 

James  P. Perdue 
Deputy Chief U.S. Probation Officer 
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Middle District of Tennessee 

United States of America 
V. 	 ) 

Case No. 	3:16-cr-00117 (1) 
Robert F. Arnold 	 ) 

Defendant 	 ) 

ORDER SETTING CONDITIONS OF RELEASE 

IT IS ORDERED that the defendant's release is subject to these conditions: 

(1) The defendant must not violate federal, state, or local law while on release.
ak  

Vr 

(2) The defendant must cooperate in the collection of a DNA sample if it is authorized by 42 U.S.C. § 14135a.P 

(3) The defendant must advise the court or the pretri 1 services office or supervising officer in writing before making 
any change of residence or telephone number, iL~ 

(4) The defendant must appear in court as required and, if convicted, must surrender as directed to serve a sentence 
that the court may impose. (^h 

The defendant must appear at: 
Place 

on 
Date and Time 

If blank, defendant will be notified of next appearance. 

(5) The defendant must sign an Appearance Bond, if ordered. 
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ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS OF RELEASE 

IT IS PVRTHER ORDERED that the defendant's release is subject to the conditions marked below: 

( 	) 	(6) The defendant is placed in the custody of: 
Person or organization 
Address (only if above is an 
organization) 
City and state 	 Tel. No, 

who agrees to (a) supervise the defendant, (b) use every effort to assure the defendant's appearance at all court proceedings, and (e) notify the court immediately 
if the defendant violates a condition of release or Is no longer in the custodian's custody, 

Signed: 

Custodian 
	

Date 
( X) (7) The defendant must: 

( X Aa) subihit to supervision by and report for supervision to the Pretrial Services Office 	 , 
telephone number 	615.736-5771 	, no later than as directed 

( X )qAb) continue or actively seek employment. 
( 	) 	(c) continue or start an education program, 
( X )d) surrender any passport to: 	Pretrial Services. 
( X ) f~e) not obtain a passport or other International travel document, 
( X )ft abide by the following restrictions on personal association, residence, or travel: Travel is restricted to the Middle District of 

Tennessee unless approved in advance by Pretrial Services, 
) 	(g) avoid all contact, directly or indirectly, with any person who Is or maybe a victim or witness in the investigation or prosecution, 

including: 

( 	) 	(h) get medical or psychiatric treatment: 

( 	) 	(1) return to custody each _ 	 o'clock after being released at 	 o'clock for employment, schooling, 
or the following purposes: 

( 	) 	(l) maintain residence at a halfway house or community corrections center, as the pretrial services office or supervising officer considers 
necessary, 

( 	) 	(k) not possess a firearm, destructive device, or other weapon. 
( 	) 	(1) not use alcohol ( 	) at all ( 	) excessively. 
( 	) (m) not use or unlawfully possess a narcotic drug or other controlled substances defined In 21 U,S.C. § 802, unless prescribed by a licensed 

medical practitioner, 
( 	)' (n) subm It to testing for a prohibited substance lfrcquired by the pretrial services office or suporvis Ing officor. Testing may be used with random 

frequency and may Include urine testing, the wearing of a sweat patch, a remote alcohol testing system, and/or any form of prohibited 
substance screening ortosting. The defendant must not obstruct, attempt to obstruct, or tamper with the efficiency and accuracy ofprohibited 
substance screening or testing, 

( 	) 	(o) participate In a program of inpatient or outpatient substance abuse therapy and counseling if directed by the pretrial services office or, 
supervising officer, 

( 	) 	(p) participate in one of the following location restriction programs and comply with Its requirements as directed, 
( 	) (1) Curfew. You are restricted to your residence every day ( 	) from 	 to 	, or ( 	) as 

directed by the pretrial services office or supervising officer; or 
( 	) (ii) Home Detention, You are restricted to your residence at all times except for employment, edu cation; religious services; medical, 

substance abuse, or mental health treatment; attorney visits; court appearances; court-ordered obligations; or other activities 
approved in advance by the pretrial services office or supervising officer; or 

( 	) (iii) Home Incarceration, You are restricted to 24-hour-a•day look-down at your residence except for medical necessities and 
court appearances or other activities specifically approved by the court, 

( 	) 	(q) submit to location monitoring as directed by the pretrial services office or supervising officer and comply with all of the program 
requirements and Instructions provided. 
( 	) You must pay all or part of the cost of the program based on your ability to pay as determined by the pretrial services ofrlec or 

supervising officer, 

( 	) 	(r) report as soon as possible, to tho pretrial services offioc or supervising officer, every contact with law enforcement personnel, including 

X)~K(s) 
arrests, questioning, or traffic stops, 

( 	report: to Pretrial. Services any negative contact with law enforcement: personnel within 48 hours. 

Case 3:16-cr-00117   Document 79   Filed 09/22/16   Page 7 of 12 PageID #: 417



AO 199C (Rev. 09/08) Advice of Penalties 	 Pa go 3 	of 3 	Pages ages  

ADVICE OF PENALTIES AND SANCTIONS 

TO THE DEFENDANT: 

YOU ARE ADVISED OF THE FOLLOWING PENALTIES AND SANCTIONS: 

Violating any of the foregoing conditions of release may result in the immediate issuance of a warrant for your arrest, a 
revocation of your release, an order of detention, a forfeiture of any bond, and a prosecution for contempt of court and could result in 
imprisonment, a fine, or both. 

While on release, if you commit a federal felony offense the punishment is an additional prison term of not more than ten years 
and for a federal misdemeanor offense the punishment is an additional prison term of not more than one year. This sentence will be 
consecutive (f, e., in addition to) to any other sentence you receive. 

It is a crime punishable by up to ten years in prison, and a $250,000 fine, or both, to: obstruct a criminal investigation; 
tamper with a witness, victim, or informant; retaliate or attempt to retaliate against a witness, victim, or informant; or intimidate or attempt 
to intimidate a witness, victim, juror, informant, or officer of the court. The penalties for tampering, retaliation, or intimidation are 
significantly more serious if they involve a killing or attempted killing. 

If, after release, you knowingly fail to appear as the conditions of release require, or to surrender to serve a sentence, 
you may be prosecuted for failing to appear or surrender and additional punishment may be imposed. If you are convicted of: 

(1) an offense punishable by death, life imprisonment, or imprisonment for a term of fifteen years or more — you will be fined 
not more than $250,000 or imprisoned for not more than 10 years, or both; 

(2) an offense punishable by imprisonment for a term of five years or more, but less than fifteen years -- you will be fined not 
more than $250,000 or imprisoned for not more than five years, or both; 

(3) any other felony — you will be fined not more than $250,000 or imprisoned not more than two years, or both; 
(4) a misdemeanor — you will be fined not more than $100,000 or imprisoned not more than one year, or both. 
A term of imprisonment imposed for failure to appear or surrender will be consecutive to any other sentence you receive. In 

addition, a failure to appear or surrender may result in the forfeiture of any bond posted. 

Acknowledgment of the Defendant 

I acknowledge that I am the defendant in this case and that I am aware ofthe conditions ofrelease. I promise to obey all conditions 
of release, to appear as directed, and surrender to serve any sentence imposed. I am aware of the penalties and sanctions set forth above. 

Defendant's Signature 

City and State 

Directions to the United States Marshal 

( X) The defendant is ORDERED released after processing. 
( 	) The United States marshal is ORDERED to keep the defendant in custody until notified by the clerk or judge that the defendant 

has posted bond and/or complied with all other conditions for release. If still in custody, the defendant must be produced before 
the appropriate judge at the time and place specified. 

Date: 	May 27, 2016 
Officer's 

JOHN S. BRYANT U.S. MAGISTRATE JUDGE 
Printed name and title 

DISTRBtMON: COURT DEFENDANT PRETRIAL SERVICE U.S. ATTORNEY U.S. MARSHAL 
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UNITED STATFS DISTRICT COURT 
for the 

Middle District of Tennessee 

United States of America 	 ) 
V. 	 ) 

Robert F. Arnold 	 ) 	Case No. 3:16-00117 (1) 

Defendant 	 ) 

APPEARANCE BOND 

Defendant's Agreement 

I, 	 Robert F. Arnold 	 (defendant), agree to follow every order of this court, or any 
court that considers this case, and I further agree that this bond may be forfeited if I fail: 

( X ) 	to appear for court proceedings; 
( X 	) 	if convicted, to surrender to serve a sentence that the court may impose; or 
( X ) 	to comply with all conditions set forth in the Order Setting Conditions of Release. 

Type of Bond 

( 	) (1) This is a personal recognizance bond. 

( X ) (2) This is an unsecured bond of $ 250,000.00 

( 	) (3) This is a secured bond of $ 	 , secured by: 

( 	) (a) $ 
	 , in cash deposited with the court. 

( 	) (b) the agreement of the defendant and each surety to forfeit the following cash or other property 
(describe the cash or other property, including claims on it —such as a lien, mortgage, or loan — and attach proof of 

ownership and value): 

If this bond is secured by real property, documents to protect the secured interest may be filed of record. 

( 	) 	(c) a bail bond with a solvent surety (attach a copy of the bail bond, or describe it and identify the surety): 

Forfeiture or Release of the Bond 

Forfeiture of the Bond. This appearance bond may be forfeited if the defendant does not comply with the above 
agreement. The court may immediately order the amount of the bond surrendered to the United States, including the 
security for the bond, if the defendant does not comply with the agreement. At the request of the United States, the court 
may order a judgment of forfeiture against the defendant and each surety for the entire amount of the bond, including 
interest and costs. 
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AO 98 (Rev. 12/11) Appearance Bond 

Release of the Bond. The court may order this appearance bond ended at any time. This bond will be satisfied and the 
security will be released when either: (1) the defendant is found not guilty on all charges, or (2) the defendant reports to 
serve a sentence. 

Declarations 

Ownership of the Property. I, the defendant — and each surety — declare under penalty of perjury that: 

(1) all owners of the property securing this appearance bond are included on the bond; 
(2) the property is not subject to claims, except as described above; and 
(3) I will not sell the property, allow further claims to be made against it, or do anything to reduce its value 

while this appearance bond is in effect. 

Acceptance. I, the defendant — and each surety — have read this appearance bond and have either read all the conditions 
of release set by the court or had them explained to me. I agree to this Appearance Bond. 

I, the defendant — and each surety — declare under penalty of perjury that this information is true. (See 28 U.S.C. § 1746.) 

(.~ 
Date: 	 ,~ 	 • 

efendant's signature 

Surety/property owner —printed name 	 Surety/property owner —signature and date 

Surety/property owner—printed name 	 Surety/property owner—signature and date 

Surety/property owner —printed name 	 Surety/property owner — signature and date 

CLERK OF COURT 

Date: 
Signature of Clerk or Deputy Clerk 

Approved. 

Date: YK 
	 usm 

Judge's si 	e 
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U.S. PROBATION & PRETRIAL SERVICES 

Middle District of Tennessee 

memorandum 

	

DATE: 	May 27, 2016 

	

REPLY TO 	 _ 

	

ATTN OF: 	Joshua Smith 
U.S. Probation and Pretrial Services Officer 

	

SUBJECT: 	Robert F. Arnold 
Docket No. 3:16-00117-001 

Proposed Conditions of Pretrial Supervision 

	

TO: 	Honorable John S. Bryant 
U. S. Magistrate Judge 

The above named defendant is scheduled to appear before the Court for an 
Initial Appearance hearing today, May 27, 2016, as a result of having been 
named in an Indictment filed in the Middle District of Tennessee. The 
Indictment charges the defendant with the following counts, to wit: 

Ct. 1: Conspiracy to Commit Mail Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 371 
Cts. 2-5: Wire Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1343 
Cts. 6-10: Honest Services Fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. §§§ 1341, 
1343, and 1346 
Ct. 11: Bribery Concerning Federal Programs, in violation of 18 
U.S.0 § 666(a)(1)(B) 
Ct. 13: Hobbs Act Extortion Under Color of Official Right, in violation of 
18 U.S.C. § 1951 
Ct. 14: Attempt to Tamper with a Witness by Corrupt Persuasion, in 
violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1512(b)(3) 

It is the understanding of U.S. Probation and Pretrial Services that the 
Government is not seeking detention on the above named defendant. 

Mr. Arnold does not have any criminal history. 

Should your Honor release the defendant to Pretrial Supervision, the 
following conditions are respectfully recommended: 

1. Report to Pretrial Services as directed. 
2. Maintain or actively seek employment. 
3. Surrender passport to Pretrial Services 
4. Obtain no new passport. 
5. Travel is restricted to the Middle District of Tennessee unless 

approved in advance by Pretrial Services. 
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6. 	Report to Pretrial Services any negative contact with law enforcement 
personnel within 48 hours. 

cc; 	Cecil VanDevender, Assistant U.S. Attorney 
Tom Dundon, Attorney for Defendant 

Case 3:16-cr-00117   Document 79   Filed 09/22/16   Page 12 of 12 PageID #: 422


	Page 1
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12

